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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 

JUNE 24, 2013 
DEMOLITION AND RELOCATION PERMITS 

HDP-2013-0408-B 
812 SAN MARCOS STREET 

 
PROPOSAL 

Demolish a ca. 1935 house. 
 
ARCHITECTURE 

One-story, rectangular-plan, front-gabled frame house with single and paired 6:6 
fenestration; front-gabled over-door hood on triangular knee braces over the front door; 
windows arranged with two to the left side of the front door, and one to the right, identical 
in configuration to the house at 816 San Marcos, built the same year by the same investor. 
RESEARCH 

The house appears to have been built in 1935 by Joe Franzetti, a local businessman, as a 
rental property.  He also built the house at 816 San Marcos Street, which is architecturally 
identical to this house, at the same time.  The house was vacant in the 1937 city directory; 
the first tenant was Clarence Martin, a painter, who appears in the 1939 directory.  Samuel 
A. Hill, a clerk (in a liquor store, as shown by the 1940 U.S. Census report), and his wife, 
Frances, rented the house in the early 1940s.  From the early- to mid-1940s until around 
1950, the house was rented by Tom and Eula Hashem.  Tom Hashem was born in Texas, 
but of Syrian or Lebanese heritage, and operated the Pioneer Bar on E, 6th Street, with Sam 
Tannous, also a scion of an early Lebanese immigrant family.  After the Hashem family’s 
tenancy here, the house was occupied by a series of renters, including an upholsterer, dry 
cleaner, and baker.  By the early1970s, the house was rented by Ruby J. Simpkins, who 
worked as a maid, and lived here until her death in 1998. 
STAFF COMMENTS 

The house does not appear in any City survey. 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Recommend rehabilitation on site; if that is not feasible, then recommend relocation over 
demolition, and completion of a City of Austin Documentation package prior to release of 
any permit.  While staff does not believe that the house has the requisite historical or 
architectural significance for individual designation as a historic landmark, the house 
would likely be contributing to a potential historic district in this area of Robertson Hill, 
encompassing San Marcos, Waller, and Navasota Streets between 7th and 9th Streets.  
Additionally, the house has served as the home for Anglo, Hispanic, and African-American 
families, representing residential trends in near East Austin over the past 80 years. 
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ca. 1935 

 
 

 
 
 

OCCUPANCY HISTORY 
812 San Marcos Street 
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City Directory Research, Austin History Center 
By City Historic Preservation Office 
June, 2013 
 
1992  Ruby J. Simpkins, renter 
  Retired 
 
1985-86 Ruby J. Simpkins, renter 
  Maid 
 
1981  Ruby J. Simpkins, renter 

Maid 
 
1977  Ruby J. Simpkins, renter 

Maid 
 
1973  Ruby J. Simpkins, renter 

Maid 
 
1968  James W. and Daisy Stewart, renters 

Custodian, University Presbyterian Church, 2203 San Antonio Street. 
NOTE:  Ruby Simpkins is listed as a maid living at 1132½ Salina Street. 

 
1962  James W. and Daisy Stewart, renters 

Custodian, University Presbyterian Church, 2203 San Antonio Street. 
 
1959  Manuel and Alice Ruiz, renters 

Baker 
 
1955  Earl and Consuelo Garcia, renters 

Cleaner, Model Cleaners, 1100 E. 6th Street. 
 
1952  Manuel and Beatrice Pinedo, renters 
  Upholsterer 
 
1949  Thomas N. and Eula Hashem, renters 
  Proprietor (with Sam Tannous), Pioneer Bar, beer, 805 E. 6th Street. 
 
1947  Thomas N. and Eula Hashem, renters 

Proprietor (with Sam Tannous), Pioneer Bar, beer, 805 E. 6th Street. 
 
1944-45 Thomas N. and Eula Hashem, renters 
  Driver, Mel-O-Toast Bakery, 1204 South Congress Avenue. 
 
1941  Samuel A. and Frances Hill, renters 
  Clerk 

NOTE:  The 1942 city directory shows Samuel and Frances Hill living at 1301 E. 
7th Street; he had no occupation listed. 

 
 
1939  Clarence Martin, renter 

Painter 
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1937  Vacant 
 
1935  The address is not listed in the directory. 
 
BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION 
 
Samuel A. and Frances Hill (ca. 1940 – ca. 1942) 
The 1940 U.S. Census shows Samuel A. Hill as the renter of this house.  He was then 33 years 
old, had been born in Texas, and was a clerk in a liquor store.  He was not married at the time 
the census report was taken.  With him in the house lived Robert A. Smith, 89, Smith’s nephew 
and niece, Duke Robertson, 45, and Evelyn Robertson, 28.  Both had been born in Texas.  
Duke Robertson was a carpenter for a building contractor; Evelyn had no occupation listed.  
Samuel A. Hill died in Travis County in 1983. 
 
Thomas and Eula Hashem (ca. 1942 – ca. 1950) 
The 1940 U.S. Census shows Tom Hashem as the 22-year old Texas-born son of Joseph 
Hashem, and his wife, Mona, who rented a house at 818 E. 8th Street in Austin.  Tom Hashem 
was bartender in a tavern, and had completed the 6th grade.  His father, Joseph, was a native of 
France, and a baker for a wholesale bakery.  Mona Hashem was 32 years old, had been born in 
Michigan, and was a saleslady in a variety store.  With Tom only 10 years younger than Mona, it 
appears that Mona was Joseph Hashem’s second wife.  In addition to Tom, there were four 
other Hashem children, ranging in age from 19 to 9.  Fred, the 19-year old, was an assistant in a 
pool hall.  The 1930 U.S. Census shows the family living in a rented house at 810 E. 8th Street, 
and reveals that both Joseph and Mona Hashem’s parents had been born in Syria.  Joseph 
Hashem was listed as a baker. 
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Obituary of Tom Hashem 

Austin American-Statesman, August 13, 1987 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ruby J. Simpkins (ca. 1970 – ca. 1998) 
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Obituary of Ruby J. Simpkins 

Austin American-Statesman, June 6, 1998 
 

 
PERMITS 

 
 

Water service permit to Joe Franzetti for this address (1935) 


